
 

 

 
 

DECEMBER 9, 2020 
VIDEO CONFERENCE 

 6:00 P.M. Special Meeting 
201 N. Broadway, Escondido, CA 92025 

 

 MAYOR Paul McNamara 
 DEPUTY MAYOR Consuelo Martinez 
 COUNCIL MEMBERS Olga Diaz 
  Michael Morasco 
 CITY MANAGER Jeffrey Epp 
  CITY CLERK Zack Beck 
 CITY ATTORNEY Michael McGuinness 
 DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT Mike Strong 
 DIRECTOR OF ENGINEERING SERVICES Julie Procopio 
  



 

2 
 

COVID-19 PUBLIC SERVICE ANNOUNCEMENT 

Pursuant to Governor Newsom’s Executive Orders, including N-25-20 and N-29-20: Certain Brown Act 
requirements for the holding of a public meeting have been temporarily suspended and members of the 
Escondido City Council and staff will participate in this meeting via teleconference.  In the interest of 
reducing the spread of COVID-19, members of the public are encouraged to submit their agenda and 
non-agenda comments online at the following link: https://www.escondido.org/agenda-
position.aspx.  Council Chambers will be closed.      

Public Comment: To submit comments in writing, please do so at the following link: 
https://www.escondido.org/agenda-position.aspx.  If you would like to have the comment read out loud 
at the meeting (not to exceed three minutes), please write “Read Out Loud” in the subject line.    

Depending on the volume and/or similarity of public comments, and pursuant to the City Council Rules of 
Procedure, the Mayor or Presiding Councilmember may limit the number of comments to be read and/or 
limit the amount of time each comment may be read.  It is in the interests of members of the public who 
desire that their statement be read out loud to be mindful of this potential limitation when drafting their 
comment.  The entirety of all comments received from the public will be made a part of the record of the 
meeting.        

The meeting will be available for viewing via public television on Cox Communications Channel 19 
(Escondido only). The meeting will also be live streamed online at the following link: 
https://www.escondido.org/meeting-broadcasts.aspx   

 

 
 
 
 
 
ELECTRONIC MEDIA: 
Electronic media which members of the public wish to be used during any public comment period should be submitted 
to the City Clerk’s Office at least 24 hours prior to the Council meeting at which it is to be shown.   
 
The electronic media will be subject to a virus scan and must be compatible with the City’s existing system.  The media 
must be labeled with the name of the speaker, the comment period during which the media is to be played and contact 
information for the person presenting the media.   
 
The time necessary to present any electronic media is considered part of the maximum time limit provided to speakers.  
City staff will queue the electronic information when the public member is called upon to speak.  Materials shown to 
the Council during the meeting are part of the public record and may be retained by the Clerk.   
 
The City of Escondido is not responsible for the content of any material presented, and the presentation and content 
of electronic media shall be subject to the same responsibilities regarding decorum and presentation as are applicable 
to live presentations. 

In the event a quorum of the City Council loses electrical power or suffers an internet connection 
outage not corrected within 15 minutes, the meeting will be adjourned. Any items noticed as public 
hearings will be continued to the next regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council. Any other 
agenda items the Council has not taken action on will be placed on a future agenda. 



 

3 
 

December 9, 2020 
6:00 P.M. Special Meeting 

 
Escondido City Council 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

MOMENT OF REFLECTION: 
City Council agendas allow an opportunity for a moment of silence and reflection at the beginning of the evening meeting.  
The City does not participate in the selection of speakers for this portion of the agenda, and does not endorse or sanction 
any remarks made by individuals during this time.  If you wish to be recognized during this portion of the agenda, please 
notify the City Clerk in advance.   
 
FLAG SALUTE   
 
ROLL CALL:  Diaz, Martinez, Morasco, McNamara 
 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 

The public may address the Council on any item that is not on the agenda and that is within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the legislative body.  State law prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on such 
items, but the matter may be referred to the City Manager/staff or scheduled on a subsequent agenda.  (Please 
refer to the back page of the agenda for instructions.) NOTE:  Depending on the number of requests, comments 
may be reduced to less than 3 minutes per speaker and limited to a total of 15 minutes. Any remaining speakers 
will be heard during Oral Communications at the end of the meeting. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Items on the Consent Calendar are not discussed individually and are approved in a single motion.  However, 
Council members always have the option to have an item considered separately, either on their own request 
or at the request of staff or a member of the public. 

1. CERTIFICATION OF NOVEMBER 2020 GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION AND SPECIAL 
ELECTION RESULTS -  
Request the City Council approve certifying the November 3, 2020, City of Escondido General and 
Special Election and declaring results.   

Staff Recommendation: Approval (City Clerk's Office: Zack Beck) 
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-153 



 

4 
 

 

OUTGOING OFFICIAL 

2.      PRESENTATION OF PLAQUE – 

 Olga Diaz, Councilmember 

INSTALLATION CEREMONIES 

3.      ADMINISTRATION OF OATH OF OFFICE: City Clerk, Zack Beck - 

 Tina Inscoe, Councilmember – District Two 

 Joe Garcia, Councilmember – District Three 

 Mike Morasco, Councilmember – District Four 

 Douglas Shultz, City Treasurer 

4.      COMMENTS FROM NEWLY ELECTED OFFICIALS – 

 

CURRENT BUSINESS 

5.    APPOINTMENT OF DEPUTY MAYOR – 
           Request the City Council approve appointing Councilmember Michael Morasco to serve as Deputy         

Mayor in accordance with Ordinance No. 2020-28.     

   Staff Recommendation: Approval (City Clerk’s Office: Zack Beck) 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 

The public may address the Council on any item that is not on the agenda and that is within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the legislative body.  State law prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on such 
items, but the matter may be referred to the City Manager/staff or scheduled on a subsequent agenda. Speakers 
are limited to only one opportunity to address the Council under Oral Communications.  
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

 

UPCOMING MEETING SCHEDULE 
Date Day Time Meeting Type Location 

December 16 Wednesday 5:00 & 6:00 p.m. Regular Meeting Council Chambers 
December 23 - - No Meeting (Christmas Break) - 
December 30 - - No Meeting (Christmas Break) - 
January 6 - - No Meeting - 



 

5 
 

TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL 
 

The public may address the City Council on any agenda item. Please complete a Speaker’s form and give it to 
the City Clerk.  Submission of Speaker forms prior to the discussion of an item is highly encouraged.  Comments 
are generally limited to 3 minutes. 
 

If you wish to speak concerning an item not on the agenda, you may do so under “Oral Communications.”  
Please complete a Speaker’s form as noted above. 
 

Nomination forms for Community Awards are available at the Escondido City Clerk’s Office or at 
http://www.escondido.org/city-clerks-office.aspx 
 
Handouts for the City Council should be given to the City Clerk.  To address the Council, use the podium in the 
center of the Chambers, STATE YOUR NAME FOR THE RECORD and speak directly into the microphone. 
 

AGENDA, STAFF REPORTS AND BACK-UP MATERIALS ARE AVAILABLE: 
 

• Online at http://www.escondido.org/meeting-agendas.aspx 
• In the City Clerk’s Office at City Hall  
• Placed in the Council Chambers (See: City Clerk/Minutes Clerk) immediately before and during the 

Council meeting. 
 

AVAILABILITY OF SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS AFTER AGENDA POSTING:  Any supplemental writings 
or documents provided to the City Council regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public 
inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located at 201 N. Broadway during normal business hours, or in the Council 
Chambers while the meeting is in session. 
 

LIVE BROADCAST 
 

Council meetings are broadcast live on Cox Cable Channel 19 and U-verse Channel 99 – Escondido Gov TV.  
They can also be viewed the following Sunday and Monday evenings at 6:00 p.m. on those same channels.  
The Council meetings are also available live via the Internet by accessing the City’s website at 
www.escondido.org, and clicking the “Live Streaming –City Council Meeting now in progress” button on the 
home page. 
 

Please turn off all cellular phones and pagers while the meeting is in session. 
 

The City Council is scheduled to meet the first four Wednesdays 
of the month at 5:00 in Closed Session and 6:00 in Open Session. 

(Verify schedule with City Clerk’s Office) 
Members of the Council also sit as the Successor Agency to the Community Development 

Commission, Escondido Joint Powers Financing Authority, 
 and the Mobilehome Rent Review Board. 

 

CITY HALL HOURS OF OPERATION 
Monday-Friday 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

 
 

 
If you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact our ADA Coordinator at 

839-4643.  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility. 

 
Listening devices are available for the hearing impaired – please see the City Clerk. 

 



Staff Report - Council

Consent Item No. 1 December 9, 2020         File No. 0650-40

SUBJECT: Certification of November 2020 General Municipal Election and Special Election 
Results

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk’s Office

RECOMMENDATION:

It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2020-153 certifying the November 3, 2020, 
City of Escondido General Municipal and Special Election and declaring the results.

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

Funds for election expenses in the amount of $385,000 were approved in the Fiscal Year 2020-21 
General Fund budget.  Final costs should be available from the Registrar of Voters within the next 60-
90 days.

PREVIOUS ACTION: 

On June 24, 2020, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2020-67 calling for a General Municipal 
Election to be held on November 3, 2020, to elect one (1) City Council Member – District Two, with a 
two-year term; one (1) City Council Member – District Three, with a four-year term; and one (1) City 
Council Member – District Four, with a four-year term. The City Council also adopted Resolution No. 
2020-68 requesting the San Diego County Board of Supervisors/Registrar of Voters to consolidate 
Escondido’s Municipal Election with the Statewide General Election.

CONCLUSION:

In accordance with the California Elections Code, certification of the canvass of the returns from the 
General Municipal Election held on November 3, 2020, is to be presented to the City Council for 
action.  The official certification from the Registrar of Voters is attached to Resolution No. 2020-153 
as Exhibit “A.”

APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY:
Zack Beck, City Clerk
12/2/20 3:34 p.m.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Resolution No. 2020-153
2. Resolution No. 2020-153 - Exhibit A



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-153 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
RECITING THE FACT OF THE GENERAL 
MUNICIPAL ELECTION AND THE SPECIAL 
ELECTION HELD ON NOVEMBER 3, 2020, 
DECLARING THE RESULTS AND SUCH 
OTHER MATTERS AS REQUIRED BY LAW 

 WHEREAS, a General Municipal and Special Election was held and conducted in 

the City of Escondido, on Tuesday, November 3, 2020, as required by law; and 

 WHEREAS, a notice of the election was given in time, form and manner as 

provided by law; that voting precincts were properly established; that candidates were 

nominated to fill the vacancies as provided by law; that election officers were appointed 

and that in all respects the election was held and conducted and the votes were cast, 

received and canvassed and the returns made and declared in time, form and manner 

as required by the provisions of the Elections Code of the State of California for the 

holding of elections in general law cities; and 

 WHEREAS, Resolution No. 2020-67 was adopted June 24, 2020, calling for and 

giving notice of a General Municipal Election and Special Election to be held on 

Tuesday, November 3, 2020; and 

 WHEREAS, Resolution No. 2020-68 was adopted June 24, 2020, requesting the 

Board of Supervisors of the County of San Diego and the Registrar of Voters to 

consolidate a General Municipal Election to be held on November 3, 2020, with the 

Statewide General Election to be held on the same date; and  

 WHEREAS, in accordance with California Elections Code Section 15400, the 

Official Canvass of the Returns from the General Election held on November 3, 2020, is 



   

prepared by the San Diego County Registrar of Voters and the results are declared by 

the City Council as to who was elected.  The official certification from the San Diego 

County Registrar of Voters is attached as Exhibit “A” and is incorporated by this 

reference. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California, as follows: 

 SECTION 1.  A General Municipal and Special Election was held and 

conducted in the City of Escondido, on Tuesday, November 3, 2020, as required by law. 

The whole number of ballots cast in said City for District Two Council Member – Short 

Term was 17,546; that the whole number of ballots cast in District Three for Council 

Member was 12,779; that the whole number of ballots cast in District Four for Council 

Member was 15,910. 

 SECTION 2.  That the names of persons voted for at the election by voters in 

the City of Escondido for District Two – Short Term - for Member of the City Council to 

represent District Two are as follows:   

  Tina Inscoe 

  Vanessa Valenzuela 

  Rick Paul 

 That the names of persons voted for at the election by voters in District Three for 

Member of the City Council to represent District Three are as follows: 

  Joe Garcia 



   

  Donald “Don” Greene 

  Dara Czerwonka 

  Susan Reveles 

 That the names of persons voted for at the election by voters in District Four for 

Member of the City Council to represent District Four are as follows: 

  Mike Morasco 

  Andres Yanez 

  April Austin Pugh 

 SECTION 3. That the number of votes given at each precinct and the number 

of votes given in the City to each of the persons above named for the respective offices 

for which the persons were candidates and for and against the measures were as listed 

in Exhibit “A” attached. 

 SECTION 4.  The City Council does declare and determine that Tina Inscoe was 

elected by voters in District Two as Member of the City Council – District Two for the 

short term of two years; Joe Garcia was elected by voters in District Three as Member 

of the City Council – District Three for the full term of four years; and Michael Morasco 

was re-elected by voters in District Four as Member of the City Council – District Four 

for the full term of four years. 

 SECTION 5.   That the City Clerk shall enter on the records of the City Council 

of the City of Escondido a statement of the results of said election, showing: 



   

a. The whole number of votes cast in the City;  

b. The names of the persons voted for; 

c. For what office each person was voted for; 

d. The number of votes given at each precinct to each person; and 

e. The total number of votes given to each person. 

SECTION 6.   That the City Clerk shall immediately make and deliver to each of 

such persons so elected a Certificate of Election signed by the City Clerk and duly 

authenticated; and that the City Clerk shall cause to be administered to each person 

elected, the Oath of Office prescribed in the State Constitution of the State of California, 

and shall have them subscribe to it and file the same in the office of the City Clerk.  

Each and all of the persons so elected shall then be inducted into the respective office 

to which they have been elected. 

 SECTION 7.   That the City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of the 

resolution; shall enter the same in the book of original resolutions of said City. 

 

 



Resolution No. 2020-153 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 1 of 17



Resolution No. 2020-153 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 2 of 17



Resolution No. 2020-153 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 3 of 17



Resolution No. 2020-153 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 4 of 17



Resolution No. 2020-153 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 5 of 17



Resolution No. 2020-153 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 6 of 17



Resolution No. 2020-153 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 7 of 17



Resolution No. 2020-153 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 8 of 17



Resolution No. 2020-153 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 9 of 17



Resolution No. 2020-153 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 10 of 17



Resolution No. 2020-153 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 11 of 17



Resolution No. 2020-153 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 12 of 17



Resolution No. 2020-153 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 13 of 17



Resolution No. 2020-153 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 14 of 17



Resolution No. 2020-153 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 15 of 17



Resolution No. 2020-153 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 16 of 17



Resolution No. 2020-153 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 17 of 17



Current Business Item No. 5  December 9, 2020            File No. 0610-70

SUBJECT: Appointment of Deputy Mayor

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk’s Office

RECOMMENDATION: It is requested that the City Council appoint Councilmember Michael Morasco 
to serve as Deputy Mayor in accordance with Ordinance No. 2020-28.

BACKGROUND: On November 18, 2020, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 2020-28, which 
amended Chapter 2, Article 2, Section 2-24 of the Escondido Municipal Code as follows: 

Sec. 2-24. Deputy Mayor Selection.

(a) The city council shall meet on the first Wednesday following certification of the results of 
the general municipal election and select a deputy mayor by appointment from among 
the councilmembers. If the deputy mayor leaves elected office, the city council shall 
appoint a new deputy mayor at the next regular city council meeting.

(b) The deputy mayor shall serve a one-year term. 
(c) The deputy mayor position shall rotate among councilmembers representing the four 

council districts. 
(1) The city council shall appoint the deputy mayor based on seniority in 

current office.  Each councilmember shall be appointed deputy mayor at 
least once during their four-year term in office. 

(2) If multiple councilmembers have the same seniority at the time of 
appointment, the city council shall appoint the deputy mayor based on the 
highest votes received in the general election. 

(3) If a councilmember fails or refuses to serve as deputy mayor, the 
councilmember shall not serve as deputy mayor until the other three 
councilmembers have another opportunity for appointment. 

(d) No city councilmember should be appointed deputy mayor during their first year in office.
(e) The city council retains the right to appoint the deputy mayor by majority vote, notwithstanding 

subsection (b), whenever it deems necessary.

Therefore, since Councilmember Morasco is the most senior member of the City Council, he is next in 
line to serve as Deputy Mayor. 

APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY:
Zack Beck, City Clerk
12/2/20 3:34 p.m.

ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment 1: Ordinance No. 2020-28



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-28 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, TO 
REPEAL AND REPLACE ESCONDIDO 
MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 2 
ADMINISTRATION, ARTICLE 2, CITY 
COUNCIL, SECTION 2-24, SELECTION OF 
DEPUTY MAYOR  

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 36801 authorizes a City Council 

to appoint a mayor pro tempore; and  

WHEREAS, the terms “mayor pro tempore” and “deputy mayor” are synonymous; 

and  

WHEREAS, Escondido Municipal Code (“EMC”) Chapter 2, Administration, Article 

2, City Council, Section 2-24 provides procedures for the City Council to appoint a deputy 

mayor; and 

WHEREAS, in 2013, the City Council established four city council districts; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to update the deputy mayor selection 

procedures to better ensure a fair and equitable rotation among councilmembers 

representing their respective districts.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED and the City Council of the City 

of Escondido DOES HEREBY ORDAIN as follows: 

SECTION 1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct.  

SECTION 2. That EMC, Chapter 2, Administration, Article 2, City Council, 

Section 2-24 is repealed and replaced as follows: 

Sec. 2-24. Deputy Mayor Selection. 
 
 (a) The city council shall meet on the first Wednesday following 
certification of the results of the general municipal election and select a deputy 
mayor by appointment from among the councilmembers. If the deputy mayor 

ATTACHMENT 1



leaves elected office, the city council shall appoint a new deputy mayor at the next 
regular city council meeting. 

(b) The deputy mayor shall serve a one-year term.  

(c) The deputy mayor position shall rotate among councilmembers 
representing the four council districts.  

(1) The city council shall appoint the deputy mayor based on 
seniority in current office.  Each councilmember shall be 
appointed deputy mayor at least once during their four-year 
term in office.  

 
(2) If multiple councilmembers have the same seniority at the time 

of appointment, the city council shall appoint the deputy 
mayor based on the highest votes received in the general 
election.  

 
(3) If a councilmember fails or refuses to serve as deputy mayor, 

the councilmember shall not serve as deputy mayor until the 
other three councilmembers have another opportunity for 
appointment.  

(d)  No city councilmember should be appointed deputy mayor during 
their first year in office. 

(e) The city council retains the right to appoint the deputy mayor by 
majority vote, notwithstanding subsection (b), whenever it deems necessary. 

 SECTION 3. SEPARABILITY.  If any section, subsection sentence, clause, 

phrase or portion of this ordinance is held invalid or unconstitutional for any reason by 

any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 

portions. 

 SECTION 4. That as of the effective date of this ordinance, all ordinances or 

parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 SECTION 5. That the City Clerk is hereby directed to certify to the passage of 

this ordinance and to cause the same or a summary to be published one time within 15 

ATTACHMENT 1



days of its passage in a newspaper of general circulation, printed and published in the 

County and circulated in the City of Escondido. 

ATTACHMENT 1



 PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Escondido at a regular 

meeting thereof this 18th day of November, 2020 by the following vote to wit: 

 

AYES              :  Councilmembers:   DIAZ, MARTINEZ, MORASCO, MCNAMARA 

NOES              :  Councilmembers:   NONE 

VACANT        :  Councilmembers:   DISTRICT 2 

      APPROVED:  

 

      PAUL MCNAMARA, Mayor of the 
      City of Escondido, California 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
ZACK BECK, City Clerk of the 
City of Escondido, California  
 

***** 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO :  ss. 
CITY OF ESCONDIDO       ) 
 
 
 I, Zack Beck, City Clerk of the City of Escondido, hereby certify that the foregoing ORDINANCE 

NO. 2020-28 passed at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Escondido held on the 18th day 

of November, 2020, after having been read at the regular meeting of said City Council held on the 21st day 

of October, 2020. 

 

ZACK BECK, City Clerk of the 
City of Escondido, California  
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-28 

ATTACHMENT 1


	CONSENT CALENDAR
	1. CERTIFICATION OF NOVEMBER 2020 GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION AND SPECIAL ELECTION RESULTS - 
	Resolution 2020-153
	Exhibit A of R2020-153 


	CURRENT BUSINESS
	5. APPOINTMENT OF DEPUTY MAYOR -
	Attachment 1 - ORD 2020-28 





